

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA
COMMITTEE ON PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS

Remote location using Microsoft® Teams
Friday, October 2, 2020
9:30 a.m.

PRESENT:

COUNCILWOMAN CINDY BASS, CHAIR
COUNCILWOMAN JAMIE GAUTHIER, VICE-CHAIR
COUNCILWOMAN KENDRA BROOKS
COUNCILMAN BOBBY HENON
COUNCILMAN BRIAN J. O'NEILL
COUNCILWOMAN MARIA D. QUINONES-SANCHEZ
COUNCILMAN ISAIAH THOMAS

BILLS: 200374, 200424

1 - - -

2 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: I

3 understand that state law currently
4 requires that the following announcement
5 be made at the beginning of every remote
6 public hearing as follows: Due to the
7 current public health emergency, City
8 Council Committees are currently meeting
9 remotely. We are using Microsoft Teams
10 to make these remote hearings possible.

11 Instructions for how the public
12 may view and offer public testimony at
13 public hearings of Council Committees
14 are included in the public hearing
15 notices that are published in the Daily
16 News, Inquirer and Legal Intelligencer
17 prior to the hearings and can also be
18 found on phlcouncil.com. I now note
19 that the hour has come and this is the
20 Committee on Parks, Recreation and
21 Cultural Affairs.

22 Clerk, will you please call the
23 roll to take attendance.

24 Members that are in attendance
25 will please indicate that you are

1 present when your name is called. And
2 also, please say a few brief words when
3 responding so that your image will be
4 displayed on screen when you speak.

5 Madam Clerk.

6 THE CLERK: Jamie Gauthier.

7 COUNCILWOMAN GAUTHIER: Good
8 morning, Madam Chair. Good morning,
9 everyone. Happy to be here today.

10 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Good
11 morning.

12 THE CLERK: Kendra Brooks.

13 COUNCILWOMAN BROOKS: Good
14 morning. Happy to be here today.

15 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Good
16 morning.

17 THE CLERK: Kenyatta Johnson.

18 Curtis Jones, Jr.

19 Maria Quinones-Sanchez.

20 COUNCILWOMAN QUINONES-SANCHEZ:
21 Buenos dias. Buenos dias. Buenos dias.

22 THE CLERK: And Isaiah Thomas.

23 COUNCILMAN THOMAS: Good
24 morning, Madam Chair. Good morning,
25 colleagues. Good to see you guys again

1 today.

2 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Good
3 morning and thank you. This Committee
4 is now going to proceed. A quorum of
5 the Committee is present and this
6 hearing is now called to order.

7 This is the public hearing of
8 the Committee on Parks, Recreation and
9 Cultural Affairs regarding Bill Nos.
10 200374 and 200424.

11 Clerk, will you please read the
12 title of the first bill.

13 THE CLERK: Bill No. 200374, an
14 Ordinance renaming a designated Chalfont
15 Playground in Northeast Philadelphia as
16 the "Corporal Jimmy O'Connor Memorial
17 Playground." Do --

18 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Yes. I'm
19 sorry. Please read both, yes.

20 THE CLERK: And Bill No.
21 200424, an Ordinance renaming and
22 designating the property commonly
23 referred to as the 30th and Jefferson
24 Playground located at the corner of 30th
25 and Jefferson Streets, as the "Howard

1 McCall, Sr. Playground" in the City of
2 Philadelphia.

3 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.

4 And before we begin to hear testimony
5 from the witnesses we have for today,
6 everyone who has been invited to the
7 meeting to testify should be aware that
8 this public hearing is being recorded.
9 Because the hearing is public,
10 participants and viewers have no
11 reasonable expectation of privacy. By
12 continuing to be in the meeting, you are
13 consenting to be recorded.

14 Additionally, prior to
15 recognizing Members for the questions or
16 comments they have for witnesses, I will
17 note for the record at this time that we
18 will use the chat feature available in
19 Microsoft Teams to allow Members to
20 signify that they wish to be recognized.
21 In order to comply with the Sunshine
22 Act, the chat feature must only be used
23 for that purpose.

24 And I see we've also been
25 joined by Councilman O'Neill.

1 Clerk, can you please call the
2 first panel or witness to testify for
3 the hearing this morning.

4 THE CLERK: Yes. The first
5 panel is Aparna Palantino, Tom Witmer
6 and Tom Forkin.

7 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Councilman
8 O'Neill, did you want to be recognized?

9 COUNCILMAN O'NEILL: Yes. I
10 would just like to thank you for
11 scheduling this hearing and the Members
12 for attending in anticipation. Thank
13 you for your support of this very
14 important legislation and I'm here to
15 just answer any questions. I'm not on
16 the Public Property Committee -- or the
17 Parks and Recreation Committee, I'm
18 sorry, but we work closely together and
19 I do appreciate it. Thank you.

20 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you,
21 Councilman.

22 Okay. If we could have the
23 first witness to testify, please state
24 your name for the record and begin with
25 your testimony.

1 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PALANTINO:
2 Aparna Palantino, Deputy Commissioner,
3 Parks and Recreation.

4 Good morning, Chairperson Bass
5 and members of the Committee on Parks,
6 Recreation and Cultural Affairs. I am
7 the Deputy Commissioner for
8 Infrastructure and Natural Lands for the
9 Department of Parks and Recreation. I'm
10 here today to testify in support of Bill
11 No. 200374, an Ordinance renaming and
12 designating Chalfont Playground in
13 Northeast Philadelphia as the "Corporal
14 Jimmy O'Connor Memorial Playground."

15 Corporal James O'Connor was
16 killed during a SWAT team operation to
17 arrest the homicide suspect of March
18 13th of this year. Corporal O'Connor
19 served the Philadelphia Police
20 Department for 23 years and was a member
21 of the SWAT team for 15 of those years.
22 He will be remembered as a courageous
23 hero who made the ultimate sacrifice
24 while protecting and serving the
25 citizens of Philadelphia.

1 He has been posthumously
2 promoted to the rank of Sergeant and was
3 awarded the Police Department's Medal of
4 Honor, a Purple Heart and the Medal of
5 Valor. Corporal O'Connor's family lives
6 a stone's throw away from Chalfont
7 Playground. Renaming this beloved
8 playground in his memory is a way to
9 honor his life and remember his service
10 and dedication to our City in protecting
11 our fellow citizens.

12 The Department of Parks and
13 Recreation supports this measure and
14 accordingly, I respectfully request that
15 City Council approve Bill No. 200374.
16 I'm also requesting suspension of rules
17 as to allow for first reading at the
18 next session of Council. I will be
19 happy to answer any questions you might
20 have. Thank you.

21 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.
22 Thank you for your testimony.

23 Any questions from the panel or
24 from the bill's sponsor?

25 (No response.)

1 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: No
2 questions. Okay. Thank you very much,
3 Aparna.

4 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PALANTINO:
5 You're welcome.

6 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Anyone else
7 here to testify on this bill? Clerk, is
8 there anyone else here to testify on
9 your list?

10 THE CLERK: Would Tom Witmer or
11 Tom Forkin like to testify?

12 MR. WITMER: No. I support
13 Aparna's testimony.

14 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you
15 very much. Okay. There being no one
16 else to testify on that piece of
17 legislation, if we can have the Clerk
18 read the second bill.

19 THE CLERK: We do have some
20 public comment. We just need it to be
21 called in.

22 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: I
23 apologize. If we can pause for a moment
24 to have the public comment dialed up,
25 that would be great.

1 (Brief recess.)

2 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: I see from
3 our list for public comment we have a
4 Terri O'Connor, Michael Moore, Michael
5 Bremser and Herman Matthews. So why
6 don't we start. If Terri O'Connor is on
7 the line.

8 MS. O'CONNOR: I'm here.

9 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay.
10 Terri, would you like to state your name
11 for the record and begin your testimony.
12 And I will recognize that you are the
13 spouse to Mr. O'Connor.

14 MS. O'CONNOR: Correct.

15 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: And we
16 thank you and your family, the City of
17 Philadelphia, for the service. We owe
18 you a great debt of gratitude. Thank
19 you very much.

20 MS. O'CONNOR: Thank you. My
21 name is Terri O'Connor and I want to say
22 that Jimmy deserves to be recognized in
23 this City. He paid the ultimate
24 sacrifice while serving the citizens of
25 Philadelphia. Due to the pandemic, he

1 was not able to receive a proper
2 send-off.

3 Seeing his picture in the
4 playground that not only our children
5 played in for many years, but his
6 granddaughter and future grandchildren
7 will continue to enjoy will be a
8 beautiful tribute for his entire family
9 to see forever.

10 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay.
11 Ms. O'Connor?

12 MS. O'CONNOR: I'm here.

13 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Does that
14 conclude your testimony for today?

15 MS. O'CONNOR: Yes, correct.

16 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you
17 so much. Thank you for being here and
18 again, thank you for being with us here
19 in the City of Philadelphia. We know
20 that this is a tough time for you still,
21 so all of our condolences to you and
22 your family.

23 MS. O'CONNOR: I appreciate
24 that. Thank you.

25 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Absolutely.

1 Is Mr. Michael Moore on the line and
2 ready to testify?

3 MR. MOORE: I am.

4 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Mr. Moore,
5 please state your name for the record
6 and begin your testimony.

7 MR. MOORE: Michael Moore. I
8 just would like to say Jimmy is my
9 wife's first cousin, my wife Karen.
10 That's how we met roughly 20 years ago.
11 Jimmy was far more of a cousin to my
12 wife and I. Jimmy and Terri were like
13 brothers and sisters. We did everything
14 together, various concerts, vacations,
15 always hung out together on weekends,
16 we're inseparable.

17 Jimmy's an asset to the
18 neighborhood in Calvary Athletic
19 Association as he coached children in
20 youth sports and his own children while
21 growing up. His son Jimmy also followed
22 in his father's footsteps and started
23 coaching baseball at Calvary himself.
24 Jimmy was truly one of the easiest going
25 guys. He never had anything bad to say

1 about anyone. He's a very good listener
2 and always gave solid, great advice.

3 Jimmy was a first, always there
4 to help anyone no matter what the task
5 was. Jimmy was one of the hardest
6 working guys I ever met. If he wasn't
7 working his job as a SWAT Corporal,
8 police overtime or being a real estate
9 agent or doing electrical side work, a
10 little working in a gun shop. Jimmy is
11 the main reason that my wife and I moved
12 in the 19154 Calvary area as Jimmy and
13 Terri live right down the street from my
14 wife and I, and my daughter and other
15 daughters also played sports in the
16 Calvary Athletic Association. Jimmy and
17 Terri are also godparents of my middle
18 daughter Gabrielle.

19 I just wanted to say that we
20 lost someone who's near and dear to our
21 hearts and can never be replaced. He
22 lost his life while serving the citizens
23 of Philadelphia. The renaming of
24 Chalfont Playground to Corporal Jimmy
25 O'Connor Memorial Playground will keep

1 his memory alive. To every kid who's a
2 kid now and a parent later on who has
3 played sports for Calvary AA and even if
4 it's just a kid going to the playground
5 to go on the swings or the monkey bars,
6 they'll tell around and ask their
7 parents who was Jimmy O'Connor. And the
8 answer will be he was a hard-working,
9 family man who laid down his life while
10 protecting the citizens of Philadelphia.

11 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.

12 MR. MOORE: And this will be a
13 great way to memorialize him because
14 also Jimmy and Terri's house is right
15 across the street from the playground.

16 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Very good.
17 Very good. Thank you so much for your
18 testimony. Very inspiring.

19 MR. MOORE: Thank you.

20 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Absolutely.
21 Mr. Michael Bremser. Mr. Michael
22 Bremser. Hello?

23 MR. BREMSER: Yes. I'm sorry.
24 Can you hear me now?

25 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: We can hear

1 you now. Please state your name for the
2 record and then begin your testimony.

3 MR. BREMSER: Certainly. My
4 name is Michael Bremser. I don't know
5 how much more I can add to what Mike and
6 Terri said other than being able to
7 agree with everything they said. I've
8 lived in the neighborhood since 1965 and
9 very active in the community.

10 When Jimmy moved into the
11 neighborhood, immediately he came to me
12 and asked what he could do to help the
13 children and/or the neighborhood out.
14 Again, Mike Moore, I think he summed it
15 all up. Jimmy was a person that I think
16 every neighborhood has, that can I help
17 you with this, can I help you with that.
18 He was just always outgoing, wanting to
19 help neighbors, friends, coached. And
20 again, I don't know how much more I can
21 add to what Michael said.

22 He is sorely missed. I've been
23 in contact with our neighbors being on
24 the Civic Association and coaching at
25 Calvary. They are so excited about the

1 opportunity we may have to rename the
2 playground after Jimmy and we have full
3 support of the entire Calvary Chalfont
4 neighborhood, that they would really
5 love to have this done in his honor.

6 And that's basically all I have.

7 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Well, thank
8 you so much, Mr. Bremser. And again, we
9 appreciate all of you coming forward to
10 testify and to tell us more about this
11 person and what they did, what a great
12 asset they were to the community and
13 unfortunately what a big loss we have
14 endured in the City of Philadelphia as
15 well. So thank you so much for your --

16 MR. BREMSER: If I can add --

17 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Sure.

18 MR. BREMSER: If I can just
19 add, I didn't -- I took the advice of a
20 couple of people I spoke to. On behalf
21 of the neighborhood, there were
22 literally hundreds of people contacting
23 me to see if they could speak on his
24 behalf --

25 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Oh, wow.

1 MR. BREMSER: -- but I told
2 them to keep it to the three that called
3 because we didn't want to tie your
4 entire day up. But literally hundreds
5 of people have called me to show support
6 to speak on Jimmy's behalf.

7 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you
8 so much and I'm sure that knowing your
9 Councilman as I know him, that there
10 will be an opportunity to once we get
11 past the COVID, to celebrate and to do
12 more of a public recognition to have the
13 recognition that's due and the folks who
14 want to say a few words.

15 Councilman, did you want to add
16 to that? I saw you leaning forward a
17 little bit.

18 COUNCILMAN O'NEILL: Yes. I
19 want to let everyone know, the family
20 particularly but also the neighbors,
21 Mr. Moore, Mike Bremser who came to me
22 shortly after the tragedy and asked me
23 about this. And I said, Mike, perfect.
24 This is something that will be done.
25 The Department, and I thank the

1 Department. I got no pushback at all,
2 just nothing but cooperation and
3 support. And Aparna testifying today I
4 think was a reflection of that.

5 But there will be a dedication
6 ceremony when things are back to normal
7 that will hopefully make up for some of
8 the absence of the proper tribute that
9 was not able to be paid to Jimmy
10 O'Connor while he was -- after this
11 tragedy. So it won't be soon. The
12 change will happen soon, but the actual
13 ceremony and dedication will hopefully
14 make up for some of that absence of
15 proper tribute. And I'm just honored to
16 be able to produce this on behalf of a
17 grateful neighborhood. Thank you.

18 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you
19 so much, Councilman, and we are grateful
20 to you for doing so. I also want to
21 take a moment and acknowledge that
22 Councilman Bobby Henon has joined us as
23 a member of the Committee.

24 I also noticed that in terms of
25 public comment we had a Mr. Herman

1 Matthews. I'm assuming that's Pete
2 Matthews?

3 MR. MATTHEWS: Yes.

4 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Hello,
5 Mr. Matthews. How are you?

6 MR. MATTHEWS: Hi. How are you
7 doing?

8 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: I'm doing
9 very well. Very well indeed. Please
10 state your name for the record and begin
11 your testimony.

12 MR. MATTHEWS: Okay. Herman
13 known as Pete Matthews, President of the
14 District Council 33. Okay. Start.
15 Within the City of Philadelphia, we find
16 far too many children left behind.
17 Specifically within North Philadelphia,
18 some children were raised without
19 any guidance --

20 COUNCILWOMAN BASS:
21 Mr. Matthews, Pete?

22 MR. MATTHEWS: Yes.

23 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: I'm sorry.
24 I'm going to pause you for one second
25 because I think you're on the next bill.

1 Hold for one second. We're going to
2 that right now. I do apologize.

3 MR. MATTHEWS: I'm for the
4 park --

5 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Yes.
6 There's another park renaming right
7 after this one. So actually, we're
8 going to get to that right now unless
9 there's anyone else to testify on this
10 bill, anyone else to testify on the
11 renaming of Chalfont Playground, Bill
12 No. 200374?

13 (No response.)

14 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: And hearing
15 none, if we could have the Clerk reread
16 Bill No. 200424.

17 THE CLERK: An Ordinance
18 renaming and designating the property
19 commonly referred to as the 30th and
20 Jefferson Playground located at the
21 corner of 30th and Jefferson Streets as
22 the "Howard McCall, Sr. Playground" in
23 the City of Philadelphia.

24 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you
25 very much. And if we could have the

1 Clerk call the first witness who I
2 believe is Aparna Palantino from the
3 Administration. Aparna, if you want
4 state your name and begin your
5 testimony.

6 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PALANTINO:
7 Aparna Palantino, Deputy Commissioner,
8 Parks and Recreation.

9 Good morning, Chairperson Bass
10 and members of the Committee on Parks,
11 Recreation and Cultural Affairs. I
12 serve as the Deputy Commissioner for
13 Infrastructure and Land Management for
14 the Department of Parks and Recreation.
15 I'm here today to testify in support of
16 Bill No. 200424, an Ordinance renaming
17 and designating the process commonly
18 referred to as the 30th and Jefferson
19 Playground located at the corner of 30th
20 and Jefferson Streets as the "Howard
21 McCall, Sr. Playground" in the City of
22 Philadelphia.

23 The long legacy of Howard
24 McCall, Sr. includes playing a key role
25 in the founding of the 30th and

1 Jefferson Playground, but also serving
2 as a coach, mentor and father figure for
3 countless generations of children who
4 grew up on neighboring Corlies Street
5 near the playground. Mr. McCall served
6 his community as a faithful public
7 servant in his capacity as a traffic
8 engineer with the City of Philadelphia
9 and during this time, also rose through
10 the ranks to become President of Highway
11 Local 403 with AFSCME District Council
12 33. His favorite pastime is always
13 helping the children in his
14 neighborhood, be it planning a trip to
15 see the Phillies or taking them on
16 summer adventures to see life outside of
17 their everyday lives.

18 Mr. McCall leaves a lasting
19 legacy for all of those he helped
20 throughout his life. The renaming of
21 this playground is a fitting tribute to
22 Mr. McCall and recognizes the indelible
23 mark his life has left on the
24 neighborhood and the children he loved.

25 The Department of Parks and

1 Recreation supports this measure and
2 accordingly, I respectfully request that
3 City Council approve Bill No. 200424.
4 I'm also requesting a suspension of the
5 rules to allow for first reading at the
6 next session of Council. I will be
7 happy to answer any questions you might
8 have. Thank you.

9 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.
10 Members of Council, are there any
11 questions for this witness?

12 (No response.)

13 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Seeing
14 none, if we could -- oh, I'm sorry. Was
15 there a question?

16 (No response.)

17 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: No. Okay.
18 If we could have the Clerk now call the
19 next panel or witness to testify, which
20 I believe is Mr. Herman Pete Matthews.

21 THE CLERK: Mr. Pete, are you
22 there? Mr. Pete Matthews?

23 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Uh-huh.
24 Did we lose him? Pete Matthews, are you
25 there to testify? Did we lose him?

1 THE CLERK: Yeah, I think we
2 lost him and he might be coming back.

3 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay. You
4 want to dial him back up.

5 COUNCIL SUPPORT: Yes, we're
6 going to try to reconnect with him.

7 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay.
8 Super. Thank you.

9 MR. MATTHEWS: Hello? Hello?

10 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Hello. Is
11 this Pete?

12 MR. MATTHEWS: Yes. Can you
13 hear me?

14 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Yes, we
15 can. We're all ready for you now.

16 MR. MATTHEWS: I don't know
17 what happened. But what I was saying --

18 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: That's
19 okay.

20 MR. MATTHEWS: -- somebody must
21 have got a hold of my testimony because
22 mine is a longer stage, but that was it.
23 All I would like to say I -- President
24 Pete Matthews, President of District
25 Council 33, was one of the hundreds that

1 Mr. McCall mentored and that's why we
2 are requesting that the park on 30th and
3 Jefferson Street be renamed the Howard
4 McCall, Sr. Recreation Center to honor
5 his legacy and community service and
6 activism. But that was my testimony.
7 Somebody must have got a hold of it.

8 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: That's
9 okay. Well, thank you for joining us
10 and giving your testimony. It's so very
11 important. And as a fellow North
12 Philadelphia native, obviously we know
13 that there is a lot of need and folks
14 who are there on the ground doing really
15 good work. And so, thank you so much
16 for being here and for your testimony.
17 Thank you.

18 MR. MATTHEWS: Okay. Thank
19 you.

20 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.
21 Have a good day.

22 Let me ask, were there any
23 questions from members of the panel?
24 Any questions?

25 (No response.)

1 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: No. Okay.

2 Unless there are any other questions or
3 comments from members of the Committee,
4 this concludes the hearing and we're now
5 going to go into the public meeting.

6 There being no further questions from
7 members of the Committee and no other
8 witnesses to testify, seeing that there
9 is none, I want to thank all of the
10 panels and witnesses for their
11 participation today.

12 We value your opinions and I
13 now invite all panels and witnesses to
14 please disconnect from the meeting
15 before we go into our public meeting.
16 We will now pause the proceedings
17 briefly as multiple participants leave
18 the hearing.

19 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PALANTINO:
20 Thank you, Chairperson and members of
21 the Committee.

22 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.
23 Thank you, Aparna.

24 Okay. This concludes the
25 public hearing, and the Committee will

1 now go into a public meeting to consider
2 the action to be taken on the bills
3 before this Committee today.

4 Clerk, will you please call the
5 roll to take attendance.

6 Members that are in attendance
7 will indicate so by saying present when
8 your name is called. Also, please say a
9 few brief words when responding so that
10 your image will be displayed on screen
11 when you speak.

12 Madam Clerk.

13 THE CLERK: Jamie Gauthier.

14 COUNCILWOMAN GAUTHIER:

15 Present.

16 THE CLERK: Kendra Brooks.

17 COUNCILWOMAN BROOKS: Present.

18 THE CLERK: Kenyatta Johnson.

19 Curtis Jones, Jr.

20 Maria Quinones-Sanchez.

21 And, Isaiah Thomas.

22 COUNCILMAN THOMAS: Present.

23 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.

24 I believe Councilman Henon is a member
25 of the Committee and is present also.

1 Okay. Thank you. A quorum of Committee
2 members is present.

3 And I want to recognize
4 Councilmember Gauthier for a motion on
5 Bill No. 200374.

6 COUNCILWOMAN GAUTHIER: One
7 second. I offer a motion to approve the
8 bill.

9 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay.
10 Councilmember Gauthier offers a motion
11 that Bill No. 200374 be reported from
12 this Committee with a favorable
13 recommendation and further move that the
14 rules of Council be suspended to permit
15 first reading of this bill at our next
16 session of Council.

17 Can we get a second?

18 (Duly seconded.)

19 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: The Chair
20 notes for the record that Councilmember
21 I believe it was Isaiah Thomas seconds
22 the motion.

23 COUNCILMAN THOMAS: Yes.

24 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay.

25 Great. It has been moved and properly

1 seconded that Bill No. 200374 be
2 reported from this Committee with a
3 favorable recommendation and further
4 move that the rules of Council be
5 suspended to permit first reading of
6 this bill at the next session of
7 Council.

8 All those in favor of the
9 motion will signify by saying aye.

10 (Aye.)

11 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Those
12 opposed?

13 (No response.)

14 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: The ayes
15 have it. The motion carries. And Bill
16 No. 200374 will be reported from this
17 Committee with a favorable
18 recommendation with a request that the
19 rules of Council be suspended to permit
20 first reading at the next session of
21 Council.

22 I want to recognize
23 Councilmember Gauthier for a motion on
24 Bill No. 200424.

25 COUNCILWOMAN GAUTHIER: Okay.

1 I'm so sorry about that. I think I'm
2 missing my script.

3 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: That's
4 okay. It's all right.

5 COUNCILWOMAN GAUTHIER: I make
6 a motion that this bill be reported
7 favorably from this Committee and that
8 the rules of Council be suspended to
9 permit first reading at the next meeting
10 of Council.

11 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Thank you.
12 The Chair notes for the record that
13 Councilwoman Gauthier made a motion that
14 Bill No. 200424 be reported from this
15 Committee with a favorable
16 recommendation and further move that the
17 rules of Council be suspended to permit
18 first reading of this bill at our next
19 session of Council.

20 Can we get a second?

21 (Duly seconded.)

22 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Okay. I
23 got two seconds. The Chair notes for
24 the record that Councilmember, I
25 believe, Thomas and, I'm not sure,

1 O'Neill maybe seconds the motion. It
2 has been moved and properly seconded
3 that Bill No. 200424 be reported from
4 this Committee with a favorable
5 recommendation and further move that the
6 rules of Council be suspended to permit
7 first reading of this bill at the next
8 session of Council. All those in favor
9 of the motion will signify by saying
10 aye.

11 (Aye.)

12 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: Any
13 opposed?

14 (No response.)

15 COUNCILWOMAN BASS: The ayes
16 have it and the motion carries. And No.
17 200424 will be reported from this
18 Committee with a favorable
19 recommendation with a request that rules
20 of Council be suspended to permit first
21 reading at the next session of Council.

22 This concludes the business
23 before the Committee on Parks,
24 Recreation and Cultural Affairs. I want
25 to thank everyone very much for your

Committee on Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Affairs
October 2, 2020

Page 32

1 attendance and have a great day. Thank
2 you.

3 COUNCILWOMAN GAUTHIER: Thank
4 you.

5 (Committee on Parks, Recreation
6 and Cultural Affairs concluded at
7 10:10 a.m.)

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C E R T I F I C A T I O N

I, hereby certify that the
proceedings and evidence noted are contained
fully and accurately in the stenographic
notes taken by me in the foregoing matter,
and this is a correct transcript of the
same.

TANEHA C. CARROLL
Court Reporter - Notary Public

(The foregoing certification of
this transcript does not apply to any
reproduction of the same by any means,
unless under the direct control and/or
supervision of the certifying reporter.)

Committee on Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Affairs
October 2, 2020

Page 1

A	18:3 21:2,3 26:23 Aparna's 9:13 apologize 9:23 20:2 apply 33:21 appreciate 6:19 11:23 16:9 approve 8:15 23:3 28:7 area 13:12 arrest 7:17 asked 15:12 17:22 asset 12:17 16:12 Association 12:19 13:16 15:24 assuming 19:1 Athletic 12:18 13:16 attendance 2:23,24 27:5,6 32:1 attending 6:12 available 5:18 awarded 8:3 aware 5:7 aye 29:9,10 31:10,11 ayes 29:14 31:15	11:10,13,16 11:25 12:4 14:11,16,20 14:25 16:7 16:17,25 17:7 18:18 19:4,8,20 19:23 20:5 20:14,24 21:9 23:9 23:13,17,23 24:3,7,10 24:14,18 25:8,20 26:1,22 27:23 28:9 28:19,24 29:11,14 30:3,11,22 31:12,15 beautiful 11:8 beginning 2:5 behalf 16:20 16:24 17:6 18:16 believe 21:2 23:20 27:24 28:21 30:25 beloved 8:7 big 16:13 bill 4:9,12,13 4:20 7:10 8:15 9:7,18 19:25 20:10 20:11,16 21:16 23:3 28:5,8,11 28:15 29:1 29:6,15,24 30:6,14,18 31:3,7 bill's 8:24 bills 1:17 27:2 bit 17:17 Bobby 1:12 18:22 Bremser 10:5 14:21,22,23 15:3,4 16:8 16:16,18 17:1,21 BRIAN 1:13	brief 3:2 10:1 27:9 briefly 26:17 Brooks 1:12 3:12,13 27:16,17 brothers 12:13 Buenos 3:21 3:21,21 business 31:22	C C 33:1,1,12 call 2:22 6:1 21:1 23:18 27:4 called 3:1 4:6 9:21 17:2,5 27:8 Calvary 12:18,23 13:12,16 14:3 15:25 16:3 capacity 22:7 carries 29:15 31:16 CARROLL 33:12 celebrate 17:11 Center 25:4 ceremony 18:6,13 Certainly 15:3 certification 33:20 certify 33:2 certifying 33:24 Chair 1:11 3:8,24 28:19 30:12 30:23 Chairperson 7:4 21:9 26:20 Chalfont 4:14 7:12 8:6 13:24 16:3 20:11	change 18:12 chat 5:18,22 children 11:4 12:19,20 15:13 19:16 19:18 22:3 22:13,24 CINDY 1:11 citizens 7:25 8:11 10:24 13:22 14:10 City 1:1 2:7 5:1 8:10,15 10:16,23 11:19 16:14 19:15 20:23 21:21 22:8 23:3 Civic 15:24 Clerk 2:22 3:5,6,12,17 3:22 4:11 4:13,20 6:1 6:4 9:7,10 9:17,19 20:15,17 21:1 23:18 23:21 24:1 27:4,12,13 27:16,18 closely 6:18 coach 22:2 coached 12:19 15:19 coaching 12:23 15:24 colleagues 3:25 come 2:19 coming 16:9 24:2 comment 9:20,24 10:3 18:25 comments 5:16 26:3 Commissio... 7:1,2,7 9:4 21:6,7,12 26:19 Committee 1:2 2:20 4:3,5,8 6:16 6:17 7:5	18:23 21:10 26:3,7,21 26:25 27:3 27:25 28:1 28:12 29:2 29:17 30:7 30:15 31:4 31:18,23 32:5 Committees 2:8,13 commonly 4:22 20:19 21:17 community 15:9 16:12 22:6 25:5 comply 5:21 concerts 12:14 conclude 11:14 concluded 32:6 concludes 26:4,24 31:22 condolences 11:21 consenting 5:13 consider 27:1 contact 15:23 contacting 16:22 contained 33:3 continue 11:7 continuing 5:12 control 33:23 cooperation 18:2 Corlies 22:4 corner 4:24 20:21 21:19 Corporal 4:16 7:13 7:15,18 8:5 13:7,24 correct 10:14 11:15 33:6 Council 1:1 2:8,13 8:15	8:18 19:14 22:11 23:3 23:6,10 24:5,25 28:14,16 29:4,7,19 29:21 30:8 30:10,17,19 31:6,8,20 31:21 Councilman 1:12,13,14 3:23 5:25 6:7,9,21 17:9,15,18 18:19,22 27:22,24 28:23 Councilme... 28:4,10,20 29:23 30:24 Councilwo... 1:11,11,12 1:13 2:2 3:7,10,13 3:15,20 4:2 4:18 5:3 6:7,20 8:21 9:1,6,14,22 10:2,9,15 11:10,13,16 11:25 12:4 14:11,16,20 14:25 16:7 16:17,25 17:7 18:18 19:4,8,20 19:23 20:5 20:14,24 23:9,13,17 23:23 24:3 24:7,10,14 24:18 25:8 25:20 26:1 26:22 27:14 27:17,23 28:6,9,19 28:24 29:11 29:14,25 30:3,5,11 30:13,22 31:12,15 32:3 countless	22:3 couple 16:20 courageous 7:22 Court 33:13 cousin 12:9 12:11 COVID 17:11 Cultural 1:2 2:21 4:9 7:6 21:11 31:24 32:6 current 2:7 currently 2:3 2:8 Curtis 3:18 27:19
	B back 18:6 24:2,4 bad 12:25 bars 14:5 baseball 12:23 basically 16:6 Bass 1:11 2:2 3:10,15 4:2 4:18 5:3 6:7,20 7:4 8:21 9:1,6 9:14,22 10:2,9,15					D D 1:13 Daily 2:15 daughter 13:14,18 daughters 13:15 day 17:4 25:21 32:1 dear 13:20 debt 10:18 dedication 8:10 18:5 18:13 Department 7:9,20 8:12 17:25 18:1 21:14 22:25 Departmen... 8:3 Deputy 7:1,2 7:7 9:4 21:6,7,12 26:19 deserves 10:22 designated 4:14 designating 4:22 7:12 20:18 21:17 dial 24:4 dialed 9:24 dias 3:21,21 3:21		

Committee on Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Affairs
October 2, 2020

Page 2

direct 33:23	favorably	30:5,13	14:24,25	6:14 25:11	Jr 3:18 27:19	long 21:23	Memorial
disconnect	30:7	32:3	24:13	included 2:14		longer 24:22	4:16 7:14
26:14	favorite	generations	hearing 2:6	includes	K	lose 23:24,25	13:25
displayed 3:4	22:12	22:3	2:14 4:6,7	21:24	Karen 12:9	loss 16:13	memorialize
27:10	feature 5:18	giving 25:10	5:8,9 6:3,11	indelible	keep 13:25	lost 13:20,22	14:13
District 19:14	5:22	go 14:5 26:5	20:14 26:4	22:22	17:2	24:2	memory 8:8
22:11 24:24	fellow 8:11	26:15 27:1	26:18,25	indicate 2:25	Kendra 1:12	lot 25:13	14:1
doing 13:9	25:11	godparents	hearings 2:10	27:7	3:12 27:16	love 16:5	mentor 22:2
18:20 19:7	figure 22:2	13:17	2:13,17	Infrastruct...	Kenyatta	loved 22:24	mentored
19:8 25:14	find 19:15	going 4:4	Heart 8:4	7:8 21:13	3:17 27:18		25:1
due 2:6 10:25	first 4:12 6:2	12:24 14:4	hearts 13:21	Inquirer 2:16	key 21:24	M	met 12:10
17:13	6:4,23 8:17	19:24 20:1	Hello 14:22	inseparable	kid 14:1,2,4	Madam 3:5,8	13:6
Duly 28:18	12:9 13:3	20:8 24:6	19:4 24:9,9	12:16	killed 7:16	3:24 27:12	Michael 10:4
30:21	21:1 23:5	26:5	24:10	inspiring	know 11:19	main 13:11	10:4 12:1,7
	28:15 29:5	good 3:7,8,10	help 13:4	14:18	15:4,20	man 14:9	14:21,21
E	29:20 30:9	3:13,15,23	15:12,16,17	Instructions	17:9,19	Management	15:4,21
E 33:1	30:18 31:7	3:24,25 4:2	15:19	2:11	24:16 25:12	21:13	Microsoft 1:5
easiest 12:24	31:20	7:4 13:1	helped 22:19	Intelligencer	knowing 17:8	March 7:17	2:9 5:19
electrical	fitting 22:21	14:16,17	helping 22:13	2:16	known 19:13	Maria 1:13	middle 13:17
13:9	folks 17:13	21:9 25:15	Henon 1:12	invite 26:13		3:19 27:20	Mike 15:5,14
emergency	25:13	25:21	18:22 27:24	invited 5:6	L	mark 22:23	17:21,23
2:7	followed	grandchild...	Herman 10:5	Isaiah 1:14	laid 14:9	matter 13:4	mine 24:22
endured	12:21	11:6	18:25 19:12	3:22 27:21	Land 21:13	33:5	missed 15:22
16:14	following 2:4	granddaug...	23:20	28:21	Lands 7:8	Matthews	missing 30:2
engineer 22:8	follows 2:6	11:6	hero 7:23	J	lasting 22:18	10:5 19:1,2	moment 9:23
enjoy 11:7	footsteps	grateful	Hi 19:6	J 1:13	law 2:3	19:3,5,6,12	18:21
entire 11:8	12:22	18:17,19	Highway	James 7:15	leaning 17:16	19:13,21,22	monkey 14:5
16:3 17:4	foregoing	gratitude	22:10	Jamie 1:11	leave 26:17	20:3 23:20	Moore 10:4
estate 13:8	33:5,20	10:18	hold 20:1	3:6 27:13	leaves 22:18	23:22,24	12:1,3,4,7,7
everyday	forever 11:9	great 9:25	24:21 25:7	Jefferson	left 19:16	24:9,12,16	14:12,19
22:17	Forkin 6:6	10:18 13:2	homicide	4:23,25	22:23	24:20,24	15:14 17:21
evidence 33:3	9:11	14:13 16:11	7:17	20:20,21	legacy 21:23	25:18	morning 3:8
excited 15:25	forward 16:9	28:25 32:1	honor 8:4,9	21:18,20	22:19 25:5	McCall 5:1	3:8,11,14
expectation	17:16	grew 22:4	16:5 25:4	22:1 25:3	Legal 2:16	20:22 21:21	3:16,24,24
5:11	found 2:18	ground 25:14	honored	Jimmy 4:16	legislation	21:24 22:5	4:3 6:3 7:4
	founding	growing	18:15	7:14 10:22	6:14 9:17	22:18,22	21:9
F	21:25	12:21	hopefully	12:8,11,12	life 8:9 13:22	25:1,4	motion 28:4
F 33:1	Friday 1:6	guidance	18:7,13	12:21,24	14:9 22:16	means 33:22	28:7,10,22
faithful 22:6	friends 15:19	19:19	hour 2:19	13:3,5,10	22:20,23	measure 8:13	29:9,15,23
family 8:5	full 16:2	gun 13:10	house 14:14	13:12,16,24	line 10:7 12:1	23:1	30:6,13
10:16 11:8	fully 33:4	guys 3:25	Howard 4:25	14:7,14	list 9:9 10:3	Medal 8:3,4	31:1,9,16
11:22 14:9	further 26:6	12:25 13:6	20:22 21:20	15:10,15	listener 13:1	meeting 2:8	move 28:13
17:19	28:13 29:3		21:23 25:3	16:2 18:9	literally	5:7,12 26:5	29:4 30:16
far 12:11	30:16 31:5	H	hundreds	Jimmy's	16:22 17:4	26:14,15	31:5
19:16	future 11:6	happen 18:12	16:22 17:4	12:17 17:6	little 13:10	27:1 30:9	moved 13:11
father 22:2		happened	24:25	job 13:7	17:17	member 7:20	15:10 28:25
father's	G	24:17	hung 12:15	Johnson 3:17	live 13:13	18:23 27:24	31:2
12:22	Gabrielle	happy 3:9,14		27:18	lived 15:8	members	multiple
favor 29:8	13:18	8:19 23:7	I	joined 5:25	lives 8:5	2:24 5:15	26:17
31:8	Gauthier	hard-worki...	image 3:3	18:22	22:17	5:19 6:11	
favorable	1:11 3:6,7	14:8	27:10	joining 25:9	Local 22:11	7:5 21:10	N
28:12 29:3	27:13,14	hardest 13:5	immediately	Jones 3:18	located 4:24	23:10 25:23	N 33:1
29:17 30:15	28:4,6,10	health 2:7	15:11	27:19	20:20 21:19	26:3,7,20	name 3:1
31:4,18	29:23,25	hear 5:4	important		location 1:5	27:6 28:2	6:24 10:10

Committee on Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Affairs
October 2, 2020

Page 3

10:21 12:5 15:1,4 19:10 21:4 27:8 native 25:12 Natural 7:8 near 13:20 22:5 need 9:20 25:13 neighborho... 12:18 15:8 15:11,13,16 16:4,21 18:17 22:14 22:24 neighboring 22:4 neighbors 15:19,23 17:20 never 12:25 13:21 News 2:16 normal 18:6 North 19:17 25:11 Northeast 4:15 7:13 Nos 4:9 Notary 33:13 note 2:18 5:17 noted 33:3 notes 28:20 30:12,23 33:5 noticed 18:24 notices 2:15	17:18 31:1 obviously 25:12 October 1:6 offer 2:12 28:7 offers 28:10 oh 16:25 23:14 okay 6:22 9:2 9:15 10:9 11:10 19:12 19:14 23:17 24:3,7,19 25:9,18 26:1,24 28:1,9,24 29:25 30:4 30:22 once 17:10 operation 7:16 opinions 26:12 opportunity 16:1 17:10 opposed 29:12 31:13 order 4:6 5:21 Ordinance 4:14,21 7:11 20:17 21:16 outgoing 15:18 outside 22:16 overtime 13:8 owe 10:17	26:13 parent 14:2 parents 14:7 park 20:4,6 25:2 Parks 1:2 2:20 4:8 6:17 7:3,5,9 8:12 21:8 21:10,14 22:25 31:23 32:5 participants 5:10 26:17 participation 26:11 particularly 17:20 pastime 22:12 pause 9:23 19:24 26:16 people 16:20 16:22 17:5 perfect 17:23 permit 28:14 29:5,19 30:9,17 31:6,20 person 15:15 16:11 Pete 19:1,13 19:21 23:20 23:21,22,24 24:11,24 Philadelphia 1:1 4:15 5:2 7:13,19 7:25 10:17 10:25 11:19 13:23 14:10 16:14 19:15 19:17 20:23 21:22 22:8 25:12 Phillies 22:15 phlcouncil.... 2:18 picture 11:3 piece 9:16 planning 22:14 played 11:5 13:15 14:3	playground 4:15,17,24 5:1 7:12,14 8:7,8 11:4 13:24,25 14:4,15 16:2 20:11 20:20,22 21:19,21 22:1,5,21 playing 21:24 please 2:22 2:25 3:2 4:11,19 6:1 6:23 12:5 15:1 19:9 26:14 27:4 27:8 police 7:19 8:3 13:8 possible 2:10 posthumou... 8:1 present 1:10 3:1 4:5 27:7,15,17 27:22,25 28:2 President 19:13 22:10 24:23,24 prior 2:17 5:14 privacy 5:11 proceed 4:4 proceedings 26:16 33:3 process 21:17 produce 18:16 promoted 8:2 proper 11:1 18:8,15 properly 28:25 31:2 property 4:22 6:16 20:18 protecting 7:24 8:10 14:10 public 2:6,7 2:11,12,13 2:14 4:7	5:8,9 6:16 9:20,24 10:3 17:12 18:25 22:6 26:5,15,25 27:1 33:13 published 2:15 Purple 8:4 purpose 5:23 pushback 18:1 Q question 23:15 questions 5:15 6:15 8:19,23 9:2 23:7,11 25:23,24 26:2,6 Quinones-S... 1:13 3:19 3:20 27:20 quorum 4:4 28:1 R R 33:1 raised 19:18 rank 8:2 ranks 22:10 read 4:11,19 9:18 reading 8:17 23:5 28:15 29:5,20 30:9,18 31:7,21 ready 12:2 24:15 real 13:8 really 16:4 25:14 reason 13:11 reasonable 5:11 receive 11:1 recess 10:1 recognition 17:12,13 recognize 10:12 28:3	29:22 recognized 5:20 6:8 10:22 recognizes 22:22 recognizing 5:15 recommen... 28:13 29:3 29:18 30:16 31:5,19 reconnect 24:6 record 5:17 6:24 10:11 12:5 15:2 19:10 28:20 30:12,24 recorded 5:8 5:13 Recreation 1:2 2:20 4:8 6:17 7:3,6,9 8:13 21:8,11,14 23:1 25:4 31:24 32:5 referred 4:23 20:19 21:18 reflection 18:4 regarding 4:9 remember 8:9 remembered 7:22 remote 1:5 2:5,10 remotely 2:9 rename 16:1 renamed 25:3 renaming 4:14,21 7:11 8:7 13:23 20:6 20:11,18 21:16 22:20 replaced 13:21 reported 28:11 29:2 29:16 30:6	30:14 31:3 31:17 reporter 33:13,24 reproduction 33:22 request 8:14 23:2 29:18 31:19 requesting 8:16 23:4 25:2 requires 2:4 reread 20:15 respectfully 8:14 23:2 responding 3:3 27:9 response 8:25 20:13 23:12,16 25:25 29:13 31:14 right 13:13 14:14 20:2 20:6,8 30:4 role 21:24 roll 2:23 27:5 rose 22:9 roughly 12:10 rules 8:16 23:5 28:14 29:4,19 30:8,17 31:6,19 S sacrifice 7:23 10:24 saw 17:16 saying 24:17 27:7 29:9 31:9 scheduling 6:11 screen 3:4 27:10 script 30:2 second 9:18 19:24 20:1 28:7,17 30:20 seconded	28:18 29:1 30:21 31:2 seconds 28:21 30:23 31:1 see 3:25 5:24 10:2 11:9 16:23 22:15 22:16 seeing 11:3 23:13 26:8 send-off 11:2 Sergeant 8:2 servant 22:7 serve 21:12 served 7:19 22:5 service 8:9 10:17 25:5 serving 7:24 10:24 13:22 22:1 session 8:18 23:6 28:16 29:6,20 30:19 31:8 31:21 shop 13:10 shortly 17:22 show 17:5 side 13:9 signify 5:20 29:9 31:9 sisters 12:13 solid 13:2 somebody 24:20 25:7 son 12:21 soon 18:11,12 sorely 15:22 sorry 4:19 6:18 14:23 19:23 23:14 30:1 speak 3:4 16:23 17:6 27:11 Specifically 19:17 spoke 16:20 sponsor 8:24 sports 12:20 13:15 14:3 spouse 10:13
--	--	--	---	---	---	---	---

Committee on Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Affairs
October 2, 2020

Page 4

Sr 5:1 20:22 21:21,24 25:4 stage 24:22 start 10:6 19:14 started 12:22 state 2:3 6:23 10:10 12:5 15:1 19:10 21:4 stenographic 33:4 stone's 8:6 street 13:13 14:15 22:4 25:3 Streets 4:25 20:21 21:20 summed 15:14 summer 22:16 Sunshine 5:21 Super 24:8 supervision 33:24 support 6:13 7:10 9:12 16:3 17:5 18:3 21:15 24:5 supports 8:13 23:1 sure 16:17 17:8 30:25 suspect 7:17 suspended 28:14 29:5 29:19 30:8 30:17 31:6 31:20 suspension 8:16 23:4 SWAT 7:16 7:21 13:7 swings 14:5 T T 33:1,1 take 2:23 18:21 27:5 taken 27:2	33:5 TANEHA 33:12 task 13:4 team 7:16,21 Teams 1:5 2:9 5:19 tell 14:6 16:10 terms 18:24 Terri 10:4,6 10:10,21 12:12 13:13 13:17 15:6 Terri's 14:14 testify 5:7 6:2 6:23 7:10 9:7,8,11,16 12:2 16:10 20:9,10 21:15 23:19 23:25 26:8 testifying 18:3 testimony 2:12 5:4 6:25 8:22 9:13 10:11 11:14 12:6 14:18 15:2 19:11 21:5 24:21 25:6 25:10,16 thank 4:3 5:3 6:10,12,19 6:20 8:20 8:21,22 9:2 9:14 10:16 10:18,20 11:16,17,18 11:24 14:11 14:17,19 16:7,15 17:7,25 18:17,18 20:24 23:8 23:9 24:8 25:9,15,17 25:18,20 26:9,20,22 26:23 27:23 28:1 30:11 31:25 32:1 32:3	things 18:6 think 15:14 15:15 18:4 19:25 24:1 30:1 Thomas 1:14 3:22,23 27:21,22 28:21,23 30:25 three 17:2 throw 8:6 tie 17:3 time 5:17 11:20 22:9 title 4:12 today 3:9,14 4:1 5:5 7:10 11:14 18:3 21:15 26:11 27:3 told 17:1 Tom 6:5,6 9:10,11 tough 11:20 traffic 22:7 tragedy 17:22 18:11 transcript 33:6,21 tribute 11:8 18:8,15 22:21 trip 22:14 truly 12:24 try 24:6 two 30:23 U Uh-huh 23:23 ultimate 7:23 10:23 understand 2:3 unfortunat... 16:13 use 5:18 V vacations 12:14 Valor 8:5 value 26:12	various 12:14 VICE-CH... 1:11 view 2:12 viewers 5:10 W want 6:8 10:21 17:3 17:14,15,19 18:20 21:3 24:4 26:9 28:3 29:22 31:24 wanted 13:19 wanting 15:18 wasn't 13:6 way 8:8 14:13 we're 12:16 20:1,7 24:5 24:15 26:4 we've 5:24 weekends 12:15 welcome 9:5 wife 12:9,12 13:11,14 wife's 12:9 wish 5:20 Witmer 6:5 9:10,12 witness 6:2 6:23 21:1 23:11,19 witnesses 5:5 5:16 26:8 26:10,13 words 3:2 17:14 27:9 work 6:18 13:9 25:15 working 13:6 13:7,10 wow 16:25 X Y Yeah 24:1 year 7:18 years 7:20,21 11:5 12:10	youth 12:20 Z 0 1 10:10 32:7 13th 7:18 15 7:21 19154 13:12 1965 15:8 2 2 1:6 20 12:10 200374 1:17 4:10,13 7:11 8:15 20:12 28:5 28:11 29:1 29:16 200424 1:17 4:10,21 20:16 21:16 23:3 29:24 30:14 31:3 31:17 2020 1:6 23 7:20 3 30th 4:23,24 20:19,21 21:18,19,25 25:2 33 19:14 22:12 24:25 4 403 22:11 5 6 7 8 9 9:30 1:6			
--	---	---	---	---	--	--	--